APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
JUNE 11, 2019
7:00PM

CALL TO ORDER:

Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission for June 11, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM

CALL OF ROLL:

On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Mark Lobermeier, Bryan Murdock, Katie West, and Judy Coughlin

ABSENT: Commissioner Joel Ericson and Council Liaison Lisa Iverson

Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM: NONE

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for May 28, 2019

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR MEETING”
OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR MAY 28, 2019 AS
SUBMITTED.

Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Ericson

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS:

2. 1-19-001, Kennel Interim Conditional Use Permit
Rising Sun Farm
Rebecca Beckmann and Samuel Burdine
29838 Hemingway Avenue
PID R21.10078.00

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he had placed letters of support from neighbors and
veterinarians at the podium that were accidentally left out of the meeting packets. He gave a brief
overview of the request and noted that Wyoming Township had originally issued an Interim Use
Permitin 1994 that allowed a maximum of 8 dogs. He noted a recent inspection by the Minnesota
Board of Animal Health revealed that the number of animals presented exceeded that limit. He
stated that he has not received complaints about this kennel.



Steve (Samuel) Burdine, 29838 Hemingway Avenue, stated that he retired about 8 years ago and
his wife, Rebecca Beckmann also recently retired, so they are on-site full-time. He stated that
this has been their passion and have placed animals all over the world. He noted that Rebecca
is particularly passionate about the Border Collies and the Australian Shepherds that they raise
and is even a judge for the Australian Shepherd Club of America. He stated that they are
“Breeders of Merit” as designated by the American Kennel Club and have been named “Breeder
of the Year” twice for their herding dogs. He noted that up until recently they kept sheep and
cattle for training purposes for the dogs. He explained that they are a competitive breeder
because they like to see their dogs placed in homes where they will have the opportunity to
compete, but it is not a requirement. He stated that they are selective with who they place the
dogs with and noted that their contract can be seen on their website. He stated that they have a
population of geriatric dogs at their site that will stay there until their end and noted that there is a
small group of dogs that are for breeding.

Becky Beckmann, 29838 Hemingway Avenue, stated that their whole place is fenced in and they
have tried to be very respectful and not leave the dogs outside if nobody is home. She reiterated
that this has been their passion for the last 25 years. She stated that she and her husband never
had kids, and these dogs are like their kids.

Mr. Burdine noted that with the new laws from the Minnesota State Board of Animal Health, they
have met every requirement and checked every box, but the permit through the City needs to be
updated. He stated that the past inspection reports are available if anyone would like to see them
and noted that they support having to submit the inspection reports to the City as a condition of
the permit. He invited anyone who would like to come take a tour of their place to just let him
know.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
COUGHLIN, TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR COMMENT AT 7:12 P.M.

Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Ericson

Cortland R. Peterson, 29710 Hemingway Ave., stated that he is a neighbor and explained that he
takes care of some of his young grandchildren and is concerned about the dogs getting out as
well as increased traffic in the area.

Mr. Burdine noted that traffic in the area will be not be any different than it has been for the last
25 years.

Mr. Peterson stated that he does sometimes hear the dogs barking.

Barbara Peterson, 29710 Hemingway Ave., asked about noise control for that many dogs. She
stated that they can hear dogs barking in the evening. She stated that if 60-80 dogs are added,
that will produce a lot of barking. She noted that she is concerned for the safety of children in the
area and asked how many people they will employ because she feels 60 “children” will need more
than just 2 people taking are of them. She stated that she is opposed to this permit.

Todd Clercx, 29928 Hemingway Ave., stated that he had spoken with Mr. Burdine a few times
and noted that he does hear barking noise in the spring and fall when he has the windows open.



He did not realize the magnitude of the change from 8 dogs to 70 dogs and noted that the
notification did not clarify if that number includes puppies. He stated that he was nervous about
that because he did not realize that they already have that many dogs on the site. He stated that
he has lived next to them for 10 years and they have been great neighbors and really nice people.
He stated that he does have concerns and questions about the permit such as: if anyone can get
it; how long is the term; is it renewable; does it go with the property or with Becky and Steve. He
stated that when he received this notice, he called Mr. Burdine right away and was told that the
notice was misleading because they really won’t be doing anything differently and this is the same
number of dogs that they have had for many years. He stated that he has seen how they love
what they do and this is their livelihood, so he would hate to see it taken away from them. He
stated that he is concerned about the possible noise and asked if there were complaints if the
operation could be scaled back. He stated that he had heard from one other neighbor that did
not come tonight who is not in support of this permit and he asked him to pass along that it does
get a bit noisy and was concerned about the idea of adding another 70 dogs.

Dave Calhoun, 29807 Hemingway Ave., stated that he was also alarmed when he received the
letter. He stated that his biggest concern is with the noise level. He stated that he understands
the applicant saying that the dogs are like their kids and that this business is their passion. He
noted that he does not want to take that away from them, however, he has concerns about the
noise level. He stated that they have lived in this location for 5 years and have never seen one
of their dogs loose. He understands that barking is hard to control but would like to see a way to
minimize it, if possible, especially at night when the windows are open. He stated that their place
is tucked back pretty far and isn’t visible. He stated that he understands the Peterson’s concern
about their grandkids.

Mr. Peterson stated that he owns 5 acres and enjoys his privacy and likes to keep to himself. He
reiterated that he does not want to see increased traffic in the neighborhood. He stated that his
concerns and questions are not meant to be anything personal against the applicants, he would
just like answers.

Mr. Calhoun stated that he had no idea that the operation was already as large as it is, but
reiterated that he would like to see the sound minimized.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING AT 7:25 P.M.

Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Ericson

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he could address some of the questions raised by
residents. He explained that this application is for an Interim Use Permit and will expire when the
home is sold or the property is subdivided. He clarified that the permit would not automatically
carry over to a new owner. He stated that if there were violations of any of the conditions for the
permit, it would be brought back to the City to begin the process of revoking the permit. He noted
that the suggested conditions were listed in the copy of the staff report.

Mr. Burdine noted that they are inspected annually by both the American Kennel Club and the
State.

Commissioner Murdock stated that the neighbors had raised some concerns about noise. He



asked the applicant to address how many dogs are allowed outside at a time and whether the
building was insulated or other ways that the noise could be minimized.

Mr. Burdine stated that the dog run area has about 100 yards of shredded cedar that is used to
keep down the dust and smell. He explained that they run the dogs in shifts, so all dogs get a
minimum of three times a day to be outside. He stated that the male dogs stay in the heated and
insulated pole barn. He stated that only 10 dogs, at most, are allowed out at one time in the back
yard which is setback at least 500 feet from the street. He stated that the female dogs are kept
in the downstairs area of the house. He stated that the dogs bark when they see deer or if
someone drives up the driveway. He stated that the dogs are never out front and are not left out.
He stated that Becky used to have them out front when she conducted training in the front pasture,
but it was all controlled. He stated that there will not be increased traffic and that it is by
appointment only and most of their sales are from out of state buyers.

Ms. Beckmann stated that for the out of state buyers, she usually ends up bringing the dogs to
the airport. She stated that some of the noise people may be hearing could be from another one
of their neighbors that also has a number of dogs.

Mr. Burdine noted that the neighboring property she is referring to used to belong to his mother-
in-law and the owners are good people. He explained that she is an agility trainer that trains the
dogs with sheep, so there will be some noise when they are on the outdoor course. He reiterated
that they are not adding dogs and this is just what they have been doing for many years.

Ms. Beckmann stated that she wanted to address the number issue that people are concerned
with because she is the one who said the number 70. She explained that the reason she put that
number is because they have a lot of older dogs. She stated that when the vet, Dr. Perry, had
contacted the City about the numbers being too high, she was afraid that she would have to get
rid of her old dogs because the numbers were too high. She stated that she didn’t want to have
that hanging over her head, so she picked the number 70 even though they probably will not ever
reach that many dogs. She stated that Dr. Perry’s report has always said that the animals are
well cared for and loved. She stated that she really tries hard to be respectful and mindful of the
barking.

Commissioner West stated that the letter from Dr. Perry makes note of 58 adult dogs and 10
puppies as well as 29 adult cats and 40 kittens. She stated that the letter is not dated and asked
for the current number of animals.

Mr. Burdine stated that the original permit was that anything under 4 months old was not counted.
Ms. Beckmann stated that Dr. Perry was also counting dogs that were beyond breeding age.

Mr. Burdine stated that there are about 20 dogs in their breeding program.

Mrs. Peterson stated that they only have 1 little dog and sometimes it is too much for the two of
them to handle and expressed concern about only two people being able to take care of 60 dogs.

Mr. Burdine stated that they do not have any employees, but noted that his sister-in-law comes
to help and he does occasionally hire a handyman for specific projects around the property.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that there needs to be a correction to page 1 of the staff report to
state 2019 instead of 2017. She asked if the report that would need to be submitted would be the
actual inspection report or just a summary.



Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it would be the actual inspection report.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that in the letter from Dr. Perry she stated that adding dogs and
cats may jeopardize the breeder's ability to provide adequate care and meet licensing
requirements. She explained that the letter also mentioned concerns about having adequate staff
to meet the needs of that many dogs. She stated that at some point, there will be a limit and more
dogs will not be able to added and retain the ability to care for the dogs. She asked how the
applicants planned to address that issue or if they just planned to keep on adding dogs.

Ms. Beckmann stated that as she mentioned earlier, 70 is probably their top number. She stated
that the number will probably go down because she and her husband are not getting any younger.
She stated that she does not want more than 70 dogs, she only put that number in because she
didn’t want to have to get rid of her old, geriatric dogs.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she does have concerns that their previous interim use permit
allowed for 8 dogs and the applicants obviously did not follow the conditions since there are so
many more dogs on their property now.

Mr. Burdine explained that the previous permit came from Wyoming Township and they never
addressed the discrepancy because they assumed that if it was a problem, somebody would say
something.

Commissioner Coughlin stressed that the City does have the expectation that the applicants will
follow the conditions if a permit is granted. She stated that they have also added cats to their
operation which was not included in the previous permit. She asked if they were still conducting
trials and clinics.

Mr. Burdine stated that they are not doing trials or clinics, nor do they intend to.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the hours of operation are listed as 9:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. and
asked if there was any training done outside of those hours.

Ms. Beckmann stated that they no longer do training.

Mr. Burdine clarified that they may have the dogs outside before 9:00 a.m. or after 9:00 p.m. but
they do not do any training.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she can relate to the neighbor’s concerns about noise from
the dogs when their windows are open and feels it should be addressed and the dogs should be
brought indoors or the hours be adjusted accordingly in order to be respectful of the neighbors.

Mr. Burdine stated that there have been no complaints for 25 years.

Mr. Clercx stated that after looking at the map and knowing where the dogs and cats are located,
he believes that much of the dog noise he has heard is actually from the other neighbor’s property
that was mentioned and not Mr. Burdine’s and Ms. Beckmann'’s.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the City does have a noise ordinance, so the neighbors could
contact the City which could affect their permit. She stated that she thinks this is a tremendous
number of dogs and cats and is happy the State is inspecting and providing an annual report to
the City. She stated that she would like to ask that the State send a copy of the report directly to



the City. She noted that their website mentions that they have heifers and sheep and asked if
they still have those animals.

Mr. Burdine stated that they no longer have livestock. He explained that they sold the sheep a
few years ago and the cows were borrowed from a nearby rancher over the summer months. He
stated that they were bringing over about a dozen sheep to stay for the summer which kept the
grass mowed down, but they no longer do that either.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the fact that the neighbors had no idea of this business until the
letter was sent out from the City is a compliment to the applicants. He asked for an accurate
number of dogs and cats that were currently on the property.

Mr. Burdine stated that the numbers match what Dr. Perry had documented.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he shares Commissioner Coughlin’s concern that the original permit
allowed for only 8 dogs and asked how long the applicants have had close to 68 dogs.

Mr. Burdine stated that they had a growth spurt about 5 years ago.

Chair Lobermeier asked Zoning Administrator Weck to confirm that there had been no complaints
about this business in 25 years.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that was correct and there had been no complaints. He stated
that he also wanted to confirm that puppies are not counted towards the total number until they
reach 4 months of age.

Chair Lobermeier stated that this is a large number of animals and reminded the applicants that
the ultimate decision will be up to the Council. He asked if the condition was for less animals on
their property if they would be able to comply with that and still be somewhat comfortable.

Ms. Beckmann reiterated that her fear is that they would have to get rid of some of their older
dogs.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he was thinking the other side of that option and perhaps there would
be less breeding or the other dogs would be kept for shorter periods of time.

Ms. Beckmann stated that she agrees that she would prefer to go the other way, but doesn’t want
to have to get rid of her “kids” because someone told her she is a few numbers over what she is
supposed to have.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about staffing and what would happen if either of the applicants
were unable to work and take care of the dogs on a full-time basis.

Mr. Burdine stated that if one of them were incapacitated, it would change everything and they
would have to scale back and would have to stop breeding. He stated that dogs are not like cattle
and cannot be sold whenever they want. He stated that they would have to look at placing dogs.

Ms. Beckmann stated that her sister lives 10 miles away and comes over and helps and is very
good with the dogs and their handyman, Mike, has helped when needed. She stated that she is
retired at age 59 and is now on-site full-time. She stated that all of the letters from the medical
staff that takes care of the animals says that they are well cared for and noted that Dr. Perry also
stated that the animals are obviously well loved and taken care of.



Mr. Burdine stated that to answer the question about what they would do if something happened
and they both couldn’t take care of the animals, the first thing he thinks they would do would be
to get rid of the cats. He stated that in their will, they are gifting $500/dog to ensure that the dogs
are taken care of.

Commissioner Coughlin asked the applicants to address the concern by the neighbors for the
safety of their grandkids. She asked them to explain how they maintain the fencing to ensure the
dogs are never out.

Mr. Burdine stated that they are let out in smaller groups and they know which dogs get along
well together and let them out accordingly. He stated that their entire property is fenced, not just
the back area for the dogs.

Ms. Beckmann noted that the dogs must have discipline and they never leave the dogs outside
alone.

Mr. Burdine stated that in some ways, the dogs can be like teenagers, in that if you leave them
alone, they will find interesting ways to spend their time, and you probably won't like the ideas
that they come up with.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that they could hire employees to continue operating this
business because it is not a home occupation permit that only allows for 1 employee on site.

Chair Lobermeier suggested that they go through the conditions as listed in the staff report. He
read aloud the conditions and noted that the City would like the annual inspection report to be
sent directly to the City.

He noted that there are a number of conditions in the original interim use permit that no longer
apply and suggested they be removed. The Commission noted that Bengal cats need to be added
to the animals that are allowed under A; remove B; C should clearly state that there will be no
trials or clinics; dogs must be inside after 9:00 p.m.; remove the condition regarding parking for
events because there will not be any events on the premises; remove G, but leave H and | in
place.

Commissioner Murdock expressed concern that the City may not be able to rely on the State to
submit the annual inspection report and suggested that the onus be put on the business owner to
make sure that the City gets it every year.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that to ensure compliance, she would rather get the report directly
from the State.

Chair Lobermeier suggested that the original language be kept that says the applicants are
required to submit the annual inspection report and another condition be added that the City will
request a copy be sent directly from the State.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER MURDOCK, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF 1-19-001, KENNEL INTERIM
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR RISING SUN FAR, REBECCA BECKMANN AND
SAMUEL BURDINE, 29838 HEMINGWAY AVENUE, PID R21.10078.00, SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS LISTED IN THE STAFF REPORT AND AS OUTLINED ABOVE.



Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier

Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None
Absent: Ericson

Chair Lobermeier reiterated that the Planning Commission is just a recommending body and the
ultimate decision will come from the Council and noted that it will be discussed at their meeting
on June 18, 2019.

NEW BUSINESS: NONE
OLD BUSINESS:
3. Comprehensive Plan Update

Chair Lobermeier noted that the Park Advisory Commission’s plan for park and recreational trails
was included in the packet. He stated that he would like to see some pictures be included.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that this was approved in 2017 and noted that the PAC made
a few revisions recently.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he, Commissioner Coughlin, and City Administrator Linwood had a
meeting today to talk about some public engagement strategies and will have another one on
June 25, 2019. He stated that there will be a meeting on June 18, 2019 with the City Engineer to
discuss what needs to be done with the technical sections. He stated that there is a Touch A
Truck event coming up, but the Commission will not have a presence there, but should plan ahead
to have a presence for both National Night Out and Stagecoach Days. He stated that City
Administrator Linwood had some great ideas on getting public engagement as well as a realistic
timeframe. He stated that City Administrator Linwood will put together a formal schedule and
survey information

Commissioner Murdock stated that he plans to help Zoning Administrator Weck and do some
work on the introduction section.

Commissioner West stated that she had missed a meeting and asked for clarification of her role.
Commissioner Murdock explained that process of the members of the Commission working on
the various sections as outlined by Chair Lobermeier and then passing it along to Zoning
Administrator Weck to take a look at.
COMMUNICATIONS: NONE
UPDATES: NONE

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER

COUGHLIN, TO ADJOURN THE JUNE 11, 2019 “REGULAR MEETING” OF THE
WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 8:23 PM.

Voting Aye: Murdock, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Ericson



	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

